
Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA 99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s 
website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee 
meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see 
www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who are 
disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094 
(TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, March 8, 2023 
1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Via Virtual Conference 

w/In Person Public Viewing Option 
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

Committee Members: Click here to join the meeting 

General Public:   Click here to join the meeting 

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code. 
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2486 485 7919 | Password: 2023 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approve Committee Agenda (Kinnear) 

3. Chair’s Comments (Kinnear) (5 minutes) 

4. Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes) 

A. Minutes of the February 8, 2023, Committee Meeting – Corrections/Approval 

5. Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes) 

A. Board Consent Agenda 

i. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit 
(Bay 4) – Temporary Construction Easements (Otterstrom) 

ii. Appleway Station Park and Ride Property Acquisition: Right of Entry Permit (Otterstrom) 

6. Committee Chair Reports (10 minutes) 

A. Al French, Planning & Development 

B. Pamela Haley, Performance Monitoring & External Relations 

7. Board Development (20 minutes) 

A. Draft Agenda Board Retreat (Meyer) 

B. Update Rules of Procedure (Meyer)  

8. Board of Directors Draft March 16, 2023, Meeting Agenda – Corrections/Approval (Meyer) (5 minutes) 

9. Board Operations Committee Draft April 12, 2023, Meeting Agenda – Information (Meyer) (5 minutes) 

10. CEO Report (15 minutes) 

11. New Business 

12. Adjourn 

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx 

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e1b3984c2566c10c464141254c6f9c089
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=eb715e2cff1e882701126c3bccd69fa0f


RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Approve agenda. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM   2  : APPROVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Lori Kinnear, Committee Chair 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the Board Operations Committee will review the meeting agenda. 
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM   3  : BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE CHAIR’S COMMENTS 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Lori Kinnear, Committee Chair 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will have an opportunity to comment on various topics of 
interest regarding Spokane Transit. 
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Corrections and/or approval. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  4A : MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2023, COMMITTEE MEETING – 
CORRECTIONS AND/OR APPROVAL 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Amie Blain, Executive Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer 
  

SUMMARY: The February 8, 2023, meeting minutes are attached for your information and correction 
and/or approval. 
 
 
 



 

 

Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, Washington 99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

Draft Minutes of the February 8, 2023, Meeting 

Via Webex Video Conference 

MEMBERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT 

Lori Kinnear, City of Spokane, Chair Brandon Rapez-Betty, Chief Operations Officer 
Al French, Spokane County, Chair Pro Tem, Carly Cortright, Chief Communications and 
Planning & Development Committee Chair Customer Service Officer 
Pamela Haley, City of Spokane Valley Karl Otterstrom, Chief Planning and 
Performance Monitoring & External Development Officer 
Relations Committee Chair Monique Liard, Chief Financial Officer 
E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer, Nancy Williams, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Ex Officio Dana Infalt, Clerk of the Authority 
 Amie Blain, Executive Assistant to the Chief 
 Financial Officer 

MEMBERS ABSENT PROVIDING LEGAL COUNSEL 

Dan Dunne, City of Liberty Lake Megan Clark, Etter, McMahon, Lamberson, 
 Van Wert & Oreskovich, P.C. 

 STAFF ABSENT 

 None 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chair Kinnear called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. and conducted roll call. 

2. APPROVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 

This item was not reviewed. 

3. CHAIR’S COMMENTS 

Chair Kinnear suggested developing a training process to help transition new STA Board Members 
into their roles. Mr. French shared that Spokane County has scheduled a retreat for its new 
Commissioners, and that a less formal Board retreat for STA Board Members could be beneficial. 
Ms. Haley supported the idea of a retreat. Ms. Meyer recommended updating the Board’s Rules of 
Procedure, as they were last updated in 1993, and she offered to bring a draft to the Board through 
the Board Operations Committee. 

  



Board Operations Committee Meeting Minutes Page | 2 
February 8, 2023 

4. COMMITTEE ACTION 

A. January 11, 2023, Committee Minutes 

Mr. French moved to approve the January 11, 2023, Committee meeting minutes as submitted, 
Ms. Haley seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 

5. COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORTS 

A. Al French, Chair, Planning & Development (P&D) 

Mr. French noted that Council Member Stratton, City of Spokane, chaired the meeting as he 
participated via phone and had to leave early. Mr. Otterstrom shared the items presented at the 
Planning and Development Committee meeting on February 1, 2023. 

B. Pam Haley, Chair, Performance Monitoring & External Relations (PMER) 

Ms. Haley shared the items presented at the Performance Monitoring & External Relations 
Committee meeting on February 1, 2023. 

6. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA FEBRUARY 16, 2023 

Ms. Haley moved to approve the Board of Directors agenda as presented, Mr. French seconded, 
and the motion passed unanimously. 

7. BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE DRAFT AGENDA MARCH 8, 2023 

There were no questions or comments. 

Mr. French moved to approve the Board Operations Committee draft agenda as presented, Ms. 
Haley seconded, and the motion passed unanimously. 

8. CEO REPORT 

Ms. Meyer shared details regarding the January 2023 voter-approved Sales Tax revenues, and the 
City Line temporary service span and frequency comparisons for July 2023. Ms. Meyer noted that 
STA will be requesting a waiver from the Federal Transit Administration regarding the temporary 
service frequencies. Mr. French shared hiring for Coach Operators has been, and still is a challenge, 
and he supports the efforts of Ms. Meyer and STA. He noted community feedback regarding service 
times established the desire for evening and weekend service. Ms. Haley agreed with Mr. French’s 
sentiments and thanked STA staff their hard work. Chair Kinnear shared her excitement for the City 
Line launch, and she commended STA for addressing the challenges. She recommended continuing 
to communicate with the Board Members to ensure they are aware of the progress and updates. 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

Chair Kinnear shared a positive experience by a City of Spokane employee who lost a cell phone on 
an STA bus. The Coach Operator retrieved the cell phone, and it was returned to her. She was 
impressed and grateful, and she asked that Chair Kinnear share this experience and how STA staff go 
above and beyond for their customers. Mr. French shared that Spokane County is nearing 
completion of its contract renewal with STA for employee bus passes. 

  



Board Operations Committee Meeting Minutes Page | 3 
February 8, 2023 

10. ADJOURN 

With no further business to come before the Committee, Chair Kinnear adjourned the meeting at 
2:05 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Amie Blain 

Amie Blain 
Executive Assistant to the Chief Financial Officer 



SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  5Ai : CHENEY LINE CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENTS AND WEST PLAINS TRANSIT 
CENTER RETROFIT (BAY 4) - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karl Otterstrom, Planning & Development Officer 
 Jeff Hall, Capital Projects Manager 
  

SUMMARY: The Cheney Line Corridor Improvement and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4) 
project will require three (3) temporary construction easements (TCE) for the construction of bus stops 
and street improvements in the City of Cheney.  STA has been in contact with the respective property 
owners regarding these easements and all are willing partners.  These TCEs are summarized in the table 
below: 

 

TCE # PARCEL # ADDRESS DESCRIPTION OWNER TCE VALUE 

A 13121.0070 

13121.0071 

2816 & 2710 1ST 

Ave. Cheney, WA  
14’ x 158’ Sierra 

Developments, LLC 
$1,128 

B 13124.5307 445 N 6th St. 
Cheney, WA 

4’ x 42.35’  Buxton, D.C. & P.O. $100 

C 13124.5809 460 N 5th St. 
Cheney, WA 

4’ x 43.65’  St. Rose of Lima 
Catholic Parish 

$37 

TOTAL:     $1,265 

 

These TCEs are located along the City rights-of-way and allow for removal of existing sidewalk and bus 
stop pads in a state of disrepair and construction of sidewalk and landscape improvements.    The 
easement areas consist of drainage swales and landscaping.  The property values have been determined 
by appraisals performed, with a total value of $1,265. Staff are recommending the Board authorize the 
CEO to negotiate and acquire all TCEs listed for a total not-to-exceed value of $2,000. TCE expenditures 
will be attributed to the Cheney Line project budget (CIP#764). 

 

RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Recommend the Board approve, by motion, the acquisition of 
temporary construction easements on parcel nos. 13121.0070, 13121.0071, 13124.5307, and 
13124.5809 for an amount not-to-exceed $2,000 and authorize the CEO to negotiate each temporary 
construction easement and execute all necessary documents on behalf of Spokane Transit Authority.  

 



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Recommend the Board authorize, by motion, the CEO to 
negotiate and execute all necessary no-cost Right of Entry permits to complete the Phase 1 
Environmental Assessment for the Appleway Station Park and Ride. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  5Aii : APPLEWAY STATION PARK AND RIDE PROPERTY ACQUISITION: RIGHT OF 
ENTRY PERMITS 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Karl Otterstrom, Chief Planning & Development Officer 

Ryan Brodwater, Capital Projects Manager 
  

SUMMARY: Appleway Station Park and Ride is an integral element of STA Moving Forward and the 
associated I-90/Valley HPT Corridor Development Plan approved by the STA Board in October 2022. STA 
is under contract with KPFF Consulting Engineers for the planning, property acquisition, design, and 
construction management of this project. Prior to moving forward with property acquisition, a Phase 1 
Environmental Assessment needs to be performed which requires access to the property of interest via 
Right of Entry Permits with various property owners. These Permits are not anticipated to have any 
associated cost. Staff is recommending the Board provide the CEO with authority to negotiate and enter 
into all necessary Right of Entry Permits to complete Phase 1. 



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  6A : PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE CHAIR REPORT 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Al French, Chair, Planning & Development 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will review the March 1, 2023, and Draft April 5, 2023, 
committee meeting agendas as part of the report. Agendas are attached. 
 
 
 



Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA  99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the 
STA’s website:  www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in 
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in 
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, 
see www.spokanetransit.com.  Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who 
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 
10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. 

 
Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference 

w/In Person Public Viewing Option 
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

 

Committee Members: Committee Members – Click Here to Join Virtually 

General Public:   Guests – Click Here to Join Virtually 

Audio Conference:  Call the number below and enter the access code.  
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2487 351 2836 | Password: 2023 

AGENDA 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Committee Chair Report (5 minutes) 
3. Committee Action (5 minutes)  

A. Minutes of the February 1 , 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval 
B. Connect 2035 Strategic Plan – Phase 2: Scope of Work (Otterstrom) 

4. Committee Action (15 minutes) 
A. Board Consent Agenda  

1. 2023 Title VI Program Adoption (Resolution) (Otterstrom) 
B. Board Discussion Agenda -- none 

5. Reports to Committee (30 minutes) 
A. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Develop Mid-Range Planning Guidance (Otterstrom) 
B. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Project Update (Otterstrom) 
C. Draft SRTC 2024-2025 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) (Otterstrom) 

6. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes) 
7. Committee Information  
8. Review April 5, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda   
9. New Business 
10. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes) 
11. Adjourn 
 
 

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 5, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. via Webex 
                                   

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e05101568e528f4d248d5661ecd07f2bb
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ec47c2f774766b019eaed333de3dae20d


Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA  99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the 
STA’s website:  www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in 
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in 
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, 
see www.spokanetransit.com.  Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who 
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE MEETING  

Wednesday, April 5, 2023 
10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. 

 
Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference 

w/In Person Public Viewing Option 
Spokane Transit Authority, 1230 W. Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

 

Committee Members: Insert Link here 

General Public:   Insert Link here 

Audio Conference:  Call the number below and enter the access code.  
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: xxxx xxx xxxx | Password: 2023 

DRAFT  AGENDA 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Committee Chair Report (5 minutes) 
3. Committee Action (5 minutes)  

A. Minutes of the February 1 , 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval 
4. Committee Action  

A. Board Consent Agenda (5 minutes) 
1. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit Work Order #2 Approval (Otterstrom) 

B. Board Discussion Agenda  
5. Reports to Committee (20 minutes) 

A. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Refined Locally Preferred Alternative (Otterstrom) 
(Public Hearing at April Board meeting) 

B. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Planning Guidance (Otterstrom) 
C. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Financial Assumptions (Otterstrom) 

6. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes) 
7. Committee Information  
8. Review April 5, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda   
9. New Business 
10. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes) 
11. Adjourn 
 
 

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, April 5, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. via Webex 
                                   

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/


RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  6B : PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE 
CHAIR REPORT 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Pamela Haley, Chair, Performance Monitoring & External Relations 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee Chair will review the March 1, 2023, and Draft April 5, 2023, 
committee meeting agendas as part of the report. Agendas are attached. 
 
 
 



Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA  99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s website:  
www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee meetings. The public 
is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see www.spokanetransit.com.  Upon request, alternative 
formats of this information will be produced for people who are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using 
wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 1, 2023 
1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference 

w/In Person Viewing Option 
 Spokane Transit, 1230 W Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

 

Committee Members:    COMMITTEE MEMBER LINK 

General Public:   GENERAL PUBLIC LINK 

Audio Conference:  Call the number below and enter the access code.  
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: 2480 766 4058 | Password: 2023 
 

UPDATED AGENDA 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Committee Chair Report (5 minutes) 
3. Committee Action (10 minutes)  

A. Minutes of the February 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval 
B. Citizen Advisory Committee: Reappointment of Member to a Second Term (Cortright) 
C. Plaza Facility Engineering Services Scope of Work (Rapez-Betty) 

4. Committee Action (15 minutes) 
A. Board Consent Agenda  

1. July 2023 Service Revisions: Final Recommendation (Otterstrom) 
2. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4): Award of 

Contract (Otterstrom)  
3. 100% Rideshare Subsidy for Spokane Transit Employees (Rapez-Betty/Williams) 

B. Board Discussion Agenda (none)  
5. Reports to Committee (30 minutes) 

A. 2022 Year-End Performance Measures (Rapez-Betty) 
B. 2022 State Audit Timeline (Liard) 
C. 2022 Unaudited Year-End Financial Report (Liard) 
D. Community Access Pass (CAP) Program Report (Cortright) 

6. Committee Discussion (15 minutes) 
A. Student Fare Cards (E. Susan Meyer) 
B. Fee for Connect Cards (E. Susan Meyer) 

7. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes) 
8. Committee Information (no discussion/staff available for questions) 

A. January 2023 Operating Indicators (Rapez-Betty) 
B. February 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Liard) 
C. January 2023 Financial Results Summary (Liard) 

9. Review April 5, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda 
10. New Business 
 

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e489e6d9a7ae91dfc65bce65896530d6e
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=e9f0ac98b90c3a985fc6e15fa6e192fc2


Spokane Transit Authority  
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA  99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the 
STA’s website:  www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in 
Committee meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in 
accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, 
see www.spokanetransit.com.  Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who 
are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 
325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING & EXTERNAL RELATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

April 5, 2023 
1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Committee Meeting is via Virtual Conference 

w/In Person Viewing Option 
 Spokane Transit, 1230 W Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

 

Committee Members:    INSERT COMMITTEE LINK HERE 

General Public:    INSERT GUEST AND ATTENDEE LINK HERE 

Audio Conference:  Call the number below and enter the access code.  
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: XXXX| Password: 2023 
 

DRAFT AGENDA 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Committee Chair Report (10 minutes) 
3. Committee Action (15 minutes)  

A. Minutes of the March 1, 2023, Committee Meeting -- Corrections/Approval 
4. Committee Action (none) 

A. Board Consent Agenda (none) 
B. Board Discussion Agenda (none)  

5. Reports to Committee (none) 
6. Committee Discussion (15 minutes) 

A. Student Fare Cards 
7. CEO Report (E. Susan Meyer) (15 minutes) 
8. Committee Information (no discussion/staff available for questions) 

A. February 2023 Operating Indicators (Rapez-Betty) 
B. March 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Liard) 
C. February 2023 Financial Results Summary (Liard) 
D. May 2023 Service Change (Otterstrom) 

9. Review May 3, 2023, Committee Meeting Agenda 
10. New Business (5 minutes) 
11. Committee Members’ Expressions (5 minutes) 
12. Adjourn 
13. Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, May 3, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx w/In Person Option 

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/


RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For discussion. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  7A : DRAFT AGENDA BOARD RETREAT 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
  

SUMMARY:  At this time, staff will present a Draft Board Retreat Agenda for committee review and 
direction. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Recommend the Board of Directors approve, by Resolution, the 
proposed updates to the Spokane Transit Authority Rules of Procedure. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  7B : UPDATE SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
  

SUMMARY:  The attached Spokane Transit Authority Rules of Procedure were last adopted by the Board 
at the December 16, 1993, Board meeting.  

At this time, staff will present proposed updates for the Committee’s review and discussion. 



































































RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Corrections and/or approval. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM   8  : BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA MARCH 16, 2023 – 
CORRECTIONS AND/OR APPROVAL 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
  

SUMMARY: The Board of Directors meeting agenda for March 16, 2023, is attached for your 
information, correction and/or approval. 
 
 
 



Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA  99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

BOARD MEETING 
 

Thursday, March 16, 2023 
1:30 – 3:00 PM 

In-Person Meeting at the STA Boardroom 
1230 West Boone Avenue, Spokane, WA 

 
Optional Virtual Links: 
Board Members:   Board Member Link Guest Attendees: Guest Participant Link 

Password (if asked): 2023  
Call in Number:  1-408-418-9388 Event #:  2498 630 4424 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call  

2. Approve Board Agenda (Lori Kinnear) 

3. Public Expressions 

4. Board Action - Consent Agenda: 5 minutes 

A. Minutes of the February 16, 2023, Board Meeting – Corrections/Approval 
B. Approval of the February 2023 Vouchers (Monique Liard) 
C. 2023 Title VI Program Adoption (Resolution) (Karl Otterstrom) 
D. July 2023 Service Revisions: Final Recommendation (Karl Otterstrom) 
E. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4): Award 

of Contract (Karl Otterstrom) 
F. 100% Rideshare Subsidy for STA Employees (Brandon Rapez-Betty) 
G. Cheney Line Corridor Improvements and West Plains Transit Center Retrofit (Bay 4) - 

Temporary Construction Easements (Otterstrom) 
H. Appleway Station Park and Ride Property Acquisition: Right of Entry Permit (Otterstrom) 

5. Board Report: 10 minutes 

A. City Line Implementation Update (Karl Otterstrom) 

6. Board Discussion: 15 minutes 

A. Reduced Fare Categories (E. Susan Meyer) 

7. Board Operations Committee: 5 minutes 

A. Chair Report (Lori Kinnear) 

8. Planning & Development Committee: 5 minutes 
A. Chair Report (Al French) 

9. Performance Monitoring & External Relations Committee: 10 minutes 
A. Chair Report (Pam Haley) 

i. 2022 Unaudited Year-End Financial Report (Monique Liard) 
  

https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ea83b65efad40d1befb33289d1ad59746
https://spokanetransit.webex.com/spokanetransit/onstage/g.php?MTID=ed4e882bd0e35c687f568b401cb705dc5


 
 
STA Board Meeting Agenda 
March 16, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

10. CEO Report: 15 minutes 

11. Board Information – no action or discussion 
A. Committee Minutes 
B. February 2023 Sales Tax Revenue (Monique Liard) 
C. January 2023 Operating Indicators (Brandon Rapez-Betty) 
D. January 2023 Financial Results Summary (Monique Liard) 
E. 2024-2029 Transit Development Plan: Develop Mid-Range Planning Guidance (Karl Otterstrom) 
F. Draft SRTC 2024-2025 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) (Karl Otterstrom) 
G. 2022 State Audit Timeline (Monique Liard) 
H. Division Street Bus Rapid Transit: Project Update (Karl Otterstrom) 
I. 2022 Year-End Performance Measures (Brandon Rapez-Betty) 

12. New Business: 5 minutes 

13. Board Members' Expressions: 5 minutes 

14. Executive Session (Etter McMahon): (none) 

15. Adjourn 

Cable 5 Broadcast Dates and Times of March 16, 2023, Board Meeting: 
Saturday, March 18, 2023    4:00 p.m. 
Monday, March 20, 2023    10:00 a.m. 
Tuesday, March 21, 2023    8:00 p.m. 

 Next Committee Meetings (Via WebEx Virtual Conference) Wednesday: 
Planning & Development    April 5, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 
Performance Monitoring & External Relations  April 5, 2023, 1:30 p.m.  
Board Operations     April 12, 2023, 1:30 p.m.  

 Next Board Meeting : 
Thursday, April 20, 2023, 1:30 p.m. STA Boardroom, 1229 West Boone Avenue, Spokane, Washington (a 
virtual joining option will be available) 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting on STA’s 
website: www.spokanetransit.com.  A video of the Board meeting may be viewed on the website the week after the 
meeting.  Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee meetings.  The public is 
welcome to attend and participate.  Anyone wishing to address the Board of Directors on a specific subject at a Board 
meeting may do so by submitting written comments to the STA Chair of the Board (1230 West Boone Avenue, Spokane, 
WA 99201-2686) 24 hours prior to the Board meeting.  Mail addressed to the Board of Directors will be distributed by 
STA at its next meeting.  Mail addressed to a named Board Member will be forwarded to the Board Member, unopened.  
Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. For more 
information, see www.spokanetransit.com.  Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for 
people who are disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, 
please call 325-6094 (TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/


RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: For information and discussion. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM   9  : BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE DRAFT APRIL 12, 2023, MEETING 
AGENDA – INFORMATION 

 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
  

SUMMARY: The draft Board Operations Committee meeting agenda for April 12, 2023, is attached for 
your information. 
 
 
 



Spokane Transit Authority 
1230 West Boone Avenue 
Spokane, WA 99201-2686 
(509) 325-6000 

Agendas of regular Committee and Board meetings are posted the Friday afternoon preceding each meeting at the STA’s 
website: www.spokanetransit.com. Discussions concerning matters to be brought to the Board are held in Committee 
meetings. The public is welcome to attend and participate. Spokane Transit assures nondiscrimination in accordance with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Americans with Disabilities Act. For more information, see 
www.spokanetransit.com. Upon request, alternative formats of this information will be produced for people who are 
disabled. The meeting facility is accessible for people using wheelchairs. For other accommodations, please call 325-6094 
(TTY Relay 711) at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance. 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 
1:30 p.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Via Virtual Conference 

Committee Members: Click here to join the meeting 

General Public:   Click here to join the meeting 

Audio Conference: Call the number below and enter the access code. 
+1-408-418-9388 | Access code: xxxx | Password: 2023 

DRAFT AGENDA 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approve Committee Agenda (Kinnear) 

3. Chair’s Comments (Kinnear) (5 minutes) 

4. Committee Action/Discussion (5 minutes) 

A. Minutes of the March 8, 2023, Committee Meeting – Corrections/Approval 

5. Committee Chair Reports (10 minutes) 

A. Al French, Planning & Development 

B. Pamela Haley, Performance Monitoring & External Relations 

6. Board Development (Meyer) (5 minutes) 

7. Board of Directors Draft April 20, 2023, Meeting Agenda – Corrections/Approval (Meyer) (5 minutes) 

8. Board Operations Committee Draft May 10, 2023, Meeting Agenda – Information (Meyer) (5 minutes) 

9. CEO Report (15 minutes) 

10. New Business 

11. Adjourn 

Next Committee Meeting: Wednesday, May 10, 2023, at 1:30 p.m. via WebEx 

http://www.spokanetransit.com/
http://www.spokanetransit.com/


RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  10 : CEO REPORT 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: E. Susan Meyer, Chief Executive Officer 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the CEO will have an opportunity to comment on various topics of interest 
regarding Spokane Transit. 
 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION TO COMMITTEE: Information only. 

SPOKANE TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

BOARD OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 8, 2023 

AGENDA ITEM  11 : NEW BUSINESS 
 
REFERRAL COMMITTEE: n/a 
 
SUBMITTED BY: n/a 
  

SUMMARY: At this time, the Committee will have the opportunity to initiate discussion regarding new 
business relating to Board Operations. 
 
 
 


	02 Board Ops March Agenda
	02 Board Ops March Agenda Cover
	03 Board Ops Chair's Comments Cover
	04A Board Ops Draft February Minutes Cover
	04A Board Ops Draft February Minutes
	05Ai Cheney Line Temp Const Esmnts Cover
	05Aii Appleway Station Park and Ride Property Acquisition Right of Entry Permit Cover
	06A PD Committee Chair Report Cover
	06A PD March Agenda
	06A PD Draft April Agenda
	06B PMER Committee Chair Report Cover
	06B PMER March Agenda
	06B PMER Draft April Agenda
	07A Draft Agenda Board Retreat
	07B Update Rules of Procedure
	07B Rules of Procedure 1993
	08 Board Draft March Agenda Cover
	08 Board Draft March Agenda
	09 Board Ops Draft April Agenda Cover
	09 Board Ops Draft April Agenda
	10 CEO Report Cover
	11 New Business Cover

